
   

NNSW Council Meeting Papers 07 November 2020 1  

 
 

The NSW Netball Association Limited 
 

General Meeting of the Council 
Notice of Meeting 

 
 
 

Date:  Saturday 07 November 2020 

Time:  at the conclusion of the Extraordinary General Meeting 

Venue:  Hybrid: Via Zoom video conference & Tennis NSW Function 
Room, Rod Laver Drive, Sydney Olympic Park 

 
 

The Australian Securities & Investments Commission (“ASIC”) has recognised that Coronavirus (COVID-19) is 
impacting on companies’ ability to hold general meetings by way of a gathering of members in person. On 
March 20, 2020, ASIC announced that it considers that hybrid general meetings are permitted under the 
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) (Act) – assuming there is no prohibition or restriction in the entity’s 
constitution.  This view is based on section 249S of the Act - which expressly allows a company to hold a 
general meeting at 2 or more venues using any technology that gives the members as a whole a reasonable 
opportunity to participate. This section applies to Netball NSW. Netball NSW’s constitution does not prohibit 
or restrict the holding of a hybrid general meeting. Accordingly, Netball NSW is permitted to hold a hybrid 
general meeting. 

As such Netball NSW will be holding our second Council meeting of 2020 as hybrid meeting. That is, the 
meeting will be held at a physical location (Tennis NSW Function Room, Rod Laver Drive, Sydney Olympic 
Park) with the Board, a small number of selected Netball NSW officeholders and up to 2 Association Delegates 
and Life Members able to attend in person (due to COVID-19 capacity restrictions and adherence to COVID-
19 guidelines) plus the use of an online ZOOM technology facility for those Association Delegates and Life 
Members who are not able to attend in person. 

Instructions on how to join the ZOOM Video Conference including login details will be provided directly to 
all Council members on Thursday 05 November 2020.  Information on how to download the Zoom 
application and system requirements appears in the accompanying memorandum. 
  

1 of 28



   

NNSW Council Meeting Papers 07 November 2020 2  

 

THE NEW SOUTH WALES NETBALL ASSOCIATION LIMITED (ACN 001 685 007) 

NOTICE OF THE NOVEMBER 2020 GENERAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 

Notice is hereby given that a hybrid General Meeting of the Council of The New South Wales Netball 
Association Limited will be held on Saturday 07 November 2020 at Tennis NSW Function Room, Rod Laver 

Drive, Sydney Olympic Park and via Zoom video conference 

Commencing at the conclusion of the Extraordinary General Meeting 

A G E N D A 
Contents 

1. APOLOGIES ........................................................................................................................................... 4 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING .................................................................... 4 

2.1 Confirmation of the Minutes of the previous Council Meeting held on Sunday 20 September 2020 ................. 4 

2.2 Business Arising from Minutes of the previous Council Meeting held on Sunday 20 September 2020 ............... 4 

3. CORRESPONDENCE ......................................................................................................................... 17 

3.1 Correspondence received .................................................................................................................................17 

3.2 Business Arising from Correspondence .............................................................................................................17 

4. APPLICATIONS FOR MEMBERSHIP............................................................................................ 17 

5. NOTICES OF MOTION ..................................................................................................................... 17 

6. REPORTS ............................................................................................................................................ 17 

6.1 Board of Directors Report .................................................................................................................................17 

6.1.1 March 2021 Meeting ....................................................................................................................................17 

6.1.2 Board Appointments 2020 ...........................................................................................................................17 

6.1.3 Policies Updated ..........................................................................................................................................17 

6.1.4 2021 State Titles Venues ..............................................................................................................................18 

6.1.5 Vales ............................................................................................................................................................18 

6.2 Finance Report .................................................................................................................................................18 

2 of 28



   

NNSW Council Meeting Papers 07 November 2020 3  

6.2.1 Finance Report (for the Period Ending 30 September 2020) .........................................................................18 

6.2.2 Draft 2021 Budget ........................................................................................................................................18 

6.2.3 Proposed 2021 Netball NSW Affiliation Fees ................................................................................................24 

6.2.4 Proposed 2021 Netball NSW Full Season Membership Fees .........................................................................24 

6.2.5 Proposed 2021 Netball NSW Summer Membership Fees .............................................................................24 

6.2.6 Proposed Competition Fees 2021 .................................................................................................................25 

6.3 CEO’s Operational Report .................................................................................................................................26 

6.4 Appeals Tribunal Report – 2020 Competitions ..................................................................................................28 

7. GENERAL BUSINESS ........................................................................................................................ 28 

7.1 Presentation: The Road to Recovery Initiatives ................................................................................................28 

7.2 Netball NSW Revised Strategic Plan and Priorities 2020-2022 ..........................................................................28 
 
 

Michael Anderson 

Company Secretary 

 
NOTES: 

1. A Member who is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting (being each duly appointed Delegate of a 
financial affiliated Association, a Life Member and the Directors other than the Chief Executive Officer) 
has the right to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on their behalf.   

2. The proxy must be a member of the Company.  

3. A Proxy Form is available on request to mikeanderson@netballnsw.com or by calling Michael Anderson 
on 02-9951-5009. 

4. To be effective, the Proxy Form (and if it signed by an Attorney, the original or a certified copy of the 
relevant Power of Attorney) must be signed and received at Netball Central, 2 Olympic Boulevard , 
Sydney Olympic Park NSW 2127 or by email at the email address mikeanderson@netballnsw.com by 
9.00 am (AEST) on Thursday 05 November 2020. 

 
  

3 of 28

mailto:mikeanderson@netballnsw.com
mailto:mikeanderson@netballnsw.com


   

NNSW Council Meeting Papers 07 November 2020 4  

1. Apologies 

 

2. Minutes of the previous Council Meeting 

2.1 Confirmation of the Minutes of the previous Council Meeting held on Sunday 20 September 2020 

A copy of the Minutes from the Council Meeting held 20 September 2020 is attached, pages 5 to 16. 

There were no amendments received. 

2.2 Business Arising from Minutes of the previous Council Meeting held on Sunday 20 September 2020 

Nil. 

4 of 28



   

Minutes of the General Meeting of the Council: 20 September 2020 2020 1 

The New South Wales Netball Association Limited 
 

General Meeting of the Council 
Minutes of Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date:  Sunday 20 September 2020 

Time:  10:00am (AEST) 

Venue:  Hybrid: Via Zoom video conference & Tennis NSW Function 
Room, Rod Laver Drive, Sydney Olympic Park 

 
 

The Australian Securities & Investments Commission (“ASIC”) has recognised that Coronavirus (COVID-19) is 
impacting on companies’ ability to hold general meetings by way of a gathering of members in person. On 
March 20, 2020, ASIC announced that it considers that hybrid general meetings are permitted under the 
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) (Act) – assuming there is no prohibition or restriction in the entity’s 
constitution.  This view is based on section 249S of the Act - which expressly allows a company to hold a 
general meeting at 2 or more venues using any technology that gives the members as a whole a reasonable 
opportunity to participate. This section applies to Netball NSW. Netball NSW’s constitution does not prohibit 
or restrict the holding of a hybrid general meeting. Accordingly, Netball NSW is permitted to hold a hybrid 
general meeting. 

As such Netball NSW held it’s first Council meeting of 2020 as hybrid meeting. That is, the meeting was held 
at a physical location (Tennis NSW Function Room, Rod Laver Drive, Sydney Olympic Park) Centre with the 
Board, a small number of selected Netball NSW officeholders and up to 50 Association Delegates and Life 
Members able to attend in person (due to COVID-19 capacity restrictions and adherence to COVID-19 
guidelines) plus the use of an online ZOOM technology facility for those Association Delegates and Life 
Members who were not able to attend in person. 
  

5 of 28



   

Minutes of the General Meeting of the Council: 20 September 2020 2020 2 

 

THE NEW SOUTH WALES NETBALL ASSOCIATION LIMITED 
(ACN 001 685 007) 

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 

Sunday 20 September 2020 via Zoom video conference  

Commencing at 10:00am 

The meeting commenced @ 10:00am 

The President declared the meeting open at 10.00am, made the Acknowledgement to Country and welcomed 
delegates. 

Attendees were instructed to remain on mute, and to type their name and Association into the Chat function 
to confirm their attendance.  The President thanked those attending in the room. 

Quorum is 29 and 5 Directors; 41 Associations and 9 Directors are in attendance, therefore Quorum is met.  
The President noted this meeting is again the highest number of participants in recent years with 
representatives from all over NSW which has been one positive arising out of the COVID-19 crisis that 
technology has brought us together by other means. 

The President noted the meeting is being recorded.   

Netball NSW Board and staff present in the room are: 

• Louise Sullivan, President 

• Ruth Havrlant, Director 

• Matt Miller, Director 

• Vincent De Luca OAM, Director 

• Carol Murphy, Director 

• Carolyn Campbell, Chief Executive Officer 

• Mike Anderson:  Returning Officer & Executive General Manager Finance & Strategy 

• Darren Simpson, Executive General Manager Community & Pathways 

• Also, Netball NSW staff who are assisting. 

The President also acknowledged all other Netball NSW Directors who are participating via Zoom. 

The President briefly discussed meeting protocols. Polling will be utilised for voting.  Move/seconding via 
Chat, please use full name and Association.  The Chat function is to also be used for any questions throughout 
the meeting. 

 
1. Attendance 

1.1 Attendees 

 Association Name 

1.  Bankstown Netball Association Nicole Oram 

2.  Baulkham Hills Shire Netball Association Kylie Tzavaras 

6 of 28



   

Minutes of the General Meeting of the Council: 20 September 2020 2020 3 

 Association Name 

3.  Baulkham Hills Shire Netball Association Monica O'Callaghan 

4.  Blue Mountains Netball Association Denise Thrift 

5.  Blue Mountains Netball Association Tracey Arnold 

6.  Brunswick Byron Netball Association Robyn Venn 

7.  Callaghan District Netball Association Bronwyn Vosilla 

8.  Callaghan District Netball Association Renee Ridgeway 

9.  Camden & District Netball Association Lyndall Schuhmeier 

10.  Campbelltown District Netball Association Nancy Marshall 

11.  Campbelltown Netball Association Tracey Connolly 

12.  Charlestown Netball Association Dianne Pascoe 

13.  Charlestown Netball Association Gail Mayers 

14.  Charlestown Netball Association Peta Forder 

15.  Coffs Harbour Netball Association Vicki Morris 

16.  Dungog Netball Association Samantha Rumbel 

17.  Eastwood Ryde Netball Association Karen Waud 

18.  Eastwood Ryde Netball Association Allyson Hill 

19.  Fairfield Netball Association Carol Joyce Baiton OAM 

20.  Gosford Netball Association Joy Dasan 

21.  Grafton Netball Association Brooke Burton 

22.  Hastings Valley Netball Association Catherine Glover 

23.  Hastings Valley Netball Association Rosemary Andrews 

24.  Hawkesbury Netball Association Tracey Chalk 

25.  Hills District Netball Association Doug MacColl 

26.  Hills District Netball Association Jennie Thompson 

27.  Illawarra District Netball Association Dianne Elvy 

28.  Illawarra District Netball Association Lyn Holmes 

29.  Inner Western Suburbs Netball Association Leanne Blackmore 

30.  Inner Western Suburbs Netball Association Anne Tait 

31.  Ku-ring-gai Netball Association Jo-Anne Perry 

32.  Lismore & District Netball Association Shirley Donovan 

33.  Liverpool City Netball Association Jennie Webster OAM 

34.  Liverpool City Netball Association Rebecca Wakefield 

35.  Macleay Netball Association Petra Hayman 

36.  Macleay Netball Association Karen Lambley 

37.  Maitland District Netball Association Leearna Bennett 

38.  Maitland District Netball Association Kim Starkey 

7 of 28



   

Minutes of the General Meeting of the Council: 20 September 2020 2020 4 

 Association Name 

39.  Manly Warringah Netball Association Cathy Hurditch 

40.  Manly Warringah Netball Association Colette Longley 

41.  Manning Valley Netball Association Janine Kennewell 

42.  Mens Netball NSW Clare McCabe 

43.  Nelson Bay Netball Association Rebecca Keating 

44.  Newcastle Netball Association Inc Ellen Monaghan 

45.  Newcastle Netball Association Inc Cheryl Hernando 

46.  NNSW Life Member Lynn Quinn OAM 

47.  NNSW Life Member Rodney Watson OAM 

48.  NNSW Life Member Anne Doring OAM 

49.  NNSW Life Member John Hahn 

50.  NNSW Life Member Wendy Archer AM 

51.  Northern Suburbs Netball Association Ineke Walker 

52.  Northern Suburbs Netball Association Katrina Louise Damian 

53.  Parramatta Auburn Netball Association Kim Higgins 

54.  Penrith Netball Association Joy Gillett OAM 

55.  Penrith Netball Association Patricia Mann 

56.  Port Stephens Netball Association Sue Xenos 

57.  Randwick Netball Association Frances Reynolds 

58.  Randwick Netball Association Marie Anne Kelly 

59.  Shoalhaven Netball Association Wilma Klein 

60.  Shoalhaven Netball Association Kathy Rembisz 

61.  St George Netball Association Lara Mina 

62.  St George Netball Association Helen Andrews 

63.  Sutherland Shire Netball Association Prue Haberecht 

64.  Sutherland Shire Netball Association Karen Salter 

65.  Tamworth Netball Association Lisa Fox 

66.  Tamworth Netball Association Rebecca McKenzie 

67.  Woolgoolga Netball Association Michael Thorpe 

68.  Woolgoolga Netball Association Sandra Thorpe 

69.  Woy Woy Peninsular Netball Association Nichole Barnes 

70.  Wyong District Netball Association Janet Hoddinott 

1.2 Observers 

 Association Name 

71.  Northern Suburbs Netball Association Glenys Paranihi 

8 of 28



   

Minutes of the General Meeting of the Council: 20 September 2020 2020 5 

 Association Name 

72.  Northern Suburbs Netball Association Jenny Gage Traill 

73.  Audit & Risk Committee independent member Michelle Champ 

74.  Audit & Risk Committee independent Chair Andrew McMaster 

1.3 Netball NSW Board 

 Association Name 

75.  President Louise Sullivan 

76.  Director Myles Baron-Hay 

77.  Director Vincent De Luca OAM 

78.  Director Ruth Havrlant 

79.  Director Catherine Matthews 

80.  Director Matt Miller 

81.  Director Carol Murphy 

82.  Director Katherine Simmonds 

83.  Director Claire Tynan 

1.4 Netball NSW Staff 

 Association Name 

84.  Chief Executive Officer Carolyn Campbell 

85.  Community Engagement Manager Melissa Achten 

86.  Executive General Manager Finance & Strategy Mike Anderson 

87.  Competitions Manager Claire Dale 

88.  Executive Support Officer Karen de Ridder 

89.  Executive General Manager Community & Pathways Darren Simpson 

90.  General Manager Communities Lauren Woods 

1.5 Apologies 

 Association Name 

1.  Ulladulla and District Netball Association Robin Butler 

2.  Queanbeyan Netball Association Kelly Lolesio 

3.  Hills District Netball Association Lyn Burgess OAM 

4.  City of Sydney Netball Association Suzanne Simpson 

5.  City of Sydney Netball Association Jayne Occhiuto 

6.  NNSW Life Member Maureen Boyle OAM 

7.  Liverpool Netball Association Estelle Lawler 

8.  Ku-ring-gai Netball Association Cathy Staggs 

9 of 28



   

Minutes of the General Meeting of the Council: 20 September 2020 2020 6 

 Association Name 

9.  Nelson Bay Netball Association Amanda Wilks 

10.  Gosford Netball Association Belinda Beresford 

11.  Lismore & District Netball Association Fiona Fennamore 

MOVED: Liverpool; Seconded: Lynn Quinn OAM, Life Member that the apologies for the Council meeting be 
noted. 

CARRIED 

 
In addition to the apologies listed above, the following apologies were received after the formal noting of 
apologies: 
 

12.  Westlakes Netball Association Sue Shelley 

13.  Orange District Netball Association Jane Dennis 

14.  Nelson Bay Netball Association Amanda Wilks 

15.  Queanbeyan Netball Association Kelly Lolesio 

16.  Ulladulla and District Netball Association Robin Butler 

17.  City of Sydney Netball Association Suzanne Simpson 

18.  City of Sydney Netball Association Jayne Occhiuto 

 

Presidents Opening Remarks 

The President addressed the attendees noting that after an intense year for everyone dealing with the global 
COVID-19 pandemic it was important to take some time to reflect.  She noted that during 2020 nothing has 
been more important than ensuring the health and safety of our netball family and wider community. 

On behalf of the Netball NSW Board and staff and all of our wider netball family in New South Wales the 
President thanked all the Association and Club Executives and all other volunteers for making the 2020 
season happen in a challenging year.  Community netball would not have been possible without the 
dedication, tireless and extraordinary efforts of many and everyone should all feel proud of how netball has 
faced this adversity with resilience and selflessness. The President acknowledged that 2020 has been a tough 
period for many of our staff and volunteers and everyone has made significant personal sacrifices; and to 
please continue to keep an eye on the health and wellbeing of themselves and those around them. 

Members will be given the opportunity to provide input into the “Road to Recovery for 2021” during the 
Think Tank at the conclusion of this meeting as we take time to debrief and look carefully at all aspects of 
this pandemic, to learn and rethink our approaches.   

The President also recognised and thanked the Netball NSW staff and in particular the CEO, for all the work 
that has been done to ensure netball continues beyond COVID-19.  She also specifically thanked Darren 
Simpson and the whole Community & Pathways team who have guided our Associations and Clubs through 
many hurdles to enable our community players to return to court safely. She noted that the hard efforts of 
the entire Netball NSW staff were greatly appreciated and that the passion and commitment shown to our 
sport had made all the difference. 

The President noted that even more so in times of crisis it is important for us to stay ahead of the curve and 
remain a key influencer. The President then introduced the forthcoming Presentations for the meeting noting 

10 of 28



   

Minutes of the General Meeting of the Council: 20 September 2020 2020 7 

our NNSW COVID-19 Update will take time to relieve the journey that netball has taken through the crisis 
since we last met at our AGM in May 2020, and provide feedback given in our recent Association Survey on 
what learnings, challenges and opportunities faced during that period. 

Further that the post-COVID world will bring many challenges, but the opportunities also bring the potential 
for innovation and change that, where relevant, we need to embrace. 

It was noted that Netball Australia is presently conducting a “State of the Game” review, which is publicly 
open for the netball community to have their say until October 2020. The President encouraged everyone to 
take part and share your views on how we grow, strength and celebrate netball in Australia. 

The President introduced that the Netball NSW Board recently established some new Board Sub-Committees, 
including Diversity and Inclusion, and “Friends of Netball” to increase focus on certain initiatives and were 
identified in our Strategic Plan last year. This is intended to also extend opportunities for suitably qualified 
non-Board members and hopefully wider members of our netball community to be involved where they have 
specific expertise to benefit the sport, and to assist with our own Board succession planning to ensure we 
continue to have the right balance of skills and experience in our Directors. 

The President then briefly spoke to the financial position of Netball NSW. Since the COVID-19 Impact Update 
delivered to Council post the AGM in May 2020, the President addressed the steps continued to be taken by 
the Board and Management team to navigate and mitigate as much as possible the impacts on the Netball 
NSW business and netball delivery across the state at all levels. 

The President noted that several key items have made a material difference to our financial position for the 
year – and should be acknowledged that several of them are “one offs” by way of Federal Government 
JobKeeper and NSW Government support. Critical to our financial journey was noted to be the thankful ability 
of most of our Community seasons to proceed, allowing the retention of a significant part of Capitation 
revenues, and the prudent cost reduction measures taken by NNSW from the outset. 

A key priority for Netball NSW was acknowledged to be help to relieve some of the individual cases of 
financial strain still being felt for various reasons. The President explained that the Financial Hardship Scheme 
that was announced by Netball NSW last month, with the Panel to be chaired by Carol Murphy, is designed 
to offer any affiliated Club or Association in NSW the opportunity to make a submission to Netball NSW on 
the grounds of genuine financial hardship as a result of COVID-19.  Clubs and Associations are invited to 
submit applications for hardship funding due by next Friday, 25 September 2020. The President also 
reminded all that the closing date for several of our Awards closes on 30 September and to please consider 
any colleagues you consider deserving of being recognised. 

The President then acknowledged the Presentations to follow on MyNetball Update and Constitutional 
Changes. On the later, she thanked Carol Murphy as Chair of the Governance Board Sub-Committee and all 
the Directors and staff involved for their sustained efforts in putting together and consulting on our proposed 
Constitutional reform package which is intended to be put for Council’s endorsement at the November 
Council meeting. The President noted that while Constitutional reform may not seem overly exciting to some, 
our strong governance is fundamental to the success of netball in NSW to ensure we have an appropriate 
framework in which to operate successfully. 

Finally the President thanked the Netball NSW Board for their time and commitment throughout the COVID-
19 pandemic to ensure netball was able to continue albeit in many different forms. 

 
2. Minutes of the previous Council Meeting 

2.1 Confirmation of the Minutes of the previous Council Meeting held on Saturday 02 November 2019 

A copy of the Minutes from the Council Meeting held 02 November 2019 was distributed prior to the 
meeting. 

11 of 28



   

Minutes of the General Meeting of the Council: 20 September 2020 2020 8 

There were no amendments received. 

MOVED: Sutherland; Seconded: Fairfield. That the Minutes of the General Meeting of the Council held on 02 
November 2019 be adopted as tabled. 

CARRIED 

ACTION: Publish the minutes of Council meeting 02 November 2019. 

2.2 Business Arising from Minutes of the previous Council Meeting held on Saturday 02 November 2019 

Nil. 

 

3. Correspondence 

3.1 Correspondence received  

There are no items of correspondence to be tabled for this meeting. 

3.2 Business Arising from Correspondence 

Nil. 

 
4. Applications for Membership 

There were no applications for Membership received. 

 
5. Notices of Motion 

There are no notices of motion to put forward to Council. 

 
6. Reports 

6.1 Board of Directors Report 

6.1.1 November 2020 Meeting 

The second General Meeting of the Council for 2020 will be held on Saturday 07 November 2020, at Netball 
Central, 2 Olympic Boulevard, Sydney Olympic Park.  However, due to the changing COVID-19 restrictions 
further changes to venue or meeting structure may be considered. 

6.1.2 Board Appointments 2020 

The President formally introduced Matt Miller as the newly appointed Appointed Director who was present 
in the room and gave a short background of his experience. 

Noted as tabled. 

6.1.3 Policies Updated 

Noted as tabled. 

6.1.4 2021 State Titles Venues  

Proposed dates and venues for the 2021 State Titles were presented: 

12 of 28



   

Minutes of the General Meeting of the Council: 20 September 2020 2020 9 

HART Senior State Titles 

 

Saturday, 12 June to 
Monday 14 June 2021 

 

Division 1 & 2: Liverpool City Netball 
Association 

Division 3 & 4: Bankstown City Netball 
Association 

HART Junior State Titles 

 

Saturday, 26 June to 
Monday 28 June 2021 

 

Division 1 & 2: Penrith District Netball 
Association 

Division 3 & 4: Baulkham Hills Shire 
Netball Association 

BING LEE Masters State Titles 
and Netball NSW Social 
Masters 

Saturday 16 October to 
Sunday 17 October 2021 

All Divisions: Wagga Wagga Netball 
Association 

Claire Dale thanked those Associations who agreed to host the 2020 State Tiles when it was planned to split 
over 10 venues, which unfortunately was not able to proceed due to Public Health Orders in place at the 
time. 

6.1.5 Vales 

Noted as tabled. 

6.1.6 Honours List Recipients 

Noted as tabled. 

MOVED: Inner West; Seconded: Ku-ring-gai. That the Board of Directors report be confirmed as tabled. 

CARRIED 

ACTION:  No action required 

6.2 Finance Report  

6.2.1 Finance Report (for the Period Ending 31 July 2020) 

The finance report for the period ending 31 July 2020 was distributed separately prior to the meeting. 

Mike Anderson, Executive General Manager Finance & Strategy presented the financial report. 

• Turnover is down 30% from the original budget. 

• The 2020 revised budget showed a loss of ($78k) at EBITDA level (earnings before interest taxation 
depreciation and amortisation).  

• A full re-forecast of the 2020 budget was undertaken in early August and showed a significant 
improvement. $394K profit forecasted for the full year at EBITDA level (including extra ordinary items 
such as JobKeeper and State Government Funding).  

• The July 2020 high level summary of changes to the original budget: total expenditure reduction 
$5.3M; revenue falls before Government funding ($7.3M); Jobkeeper/NSW Government funding 
$2.3M; net total impact $0.3M. 

• $3.1M extra ordinary items (JobKeeper, State Government funding, etc) has had a positive impact on 
the budget. 

13 of 28



   

Minutes of the General Meeting of the Council: 20 September 2020 2020 10 

• The August financial report is currently with the Board and the Audit and Risk committee for approval 
and finalisation. Further significant improvement is expected and the EBITDA profit for 2020 (when 
extra ordinary items are included) will exceed $1M.  

• There are still a number of uncertainties going into 2021.  It is anticipated there will still be significant 
disruption in 2021 such as reduced sponsorship, withdrawal of JobKeeper subsidy, with revenues not 
expected to return to 2019 levels. 

Questions to be submitted in writing by 23 September, responses will be collated and circulated with the 
minutes. 

The President thanked MA and acknowledged the work and commitment from the Finance Team throughout 
the COVID-19 pandemic. 

MOVED: Sutherland; Seconded: Liverpool. That the Finance report be confirmed as tabled. 

CARRIED 

ACTION:  No action required 

6.3 CEO’s Operational Report 

6.3.1 Staffing Matters 

Noted as tabled. 

6.3.2 Strategic Plan 2020-2022 

The Strategic Plan for 2020-2022 was finalised in late 2019, after extensive community consultation.   Due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic, the Strategic Plan is now under review to confirm our Strategic Priorities for 2021. 

CC expressed her appreciation for the President’s acknowledgement of all the work the staff has done 
throughout this very challenging time. 

MOVED: Randwick; Seconded: Nelson Bay. That the CEO’s report be confirmed as tabled. 

CARRIED 

ACTION:  No action required 

6.4 Appeals Tribunal Report – 2020 Competitions 

Noted as tabled. 

MOVED: Lynn Quinn OAM (LM); Seconded: Macleay. That the Appeals Tribunal report be confirmed as 
tabled. 

CARRIED 

ACTION:  No action required 

 
 
7. General Business 

7.1 Presentation: NNSW COVID-19 Update 

CC presented the COVID-19 update. 

14 of 28



   

Minutes of the General Meeting of the Council: 20 September 2020 2020 11 

A summary of the Association survey was also presented. 

CC thanked members for their ongoing support. 

NOTED as presented. 

ACTION:  No action required 

 

The meeting was suspended @ 11:35am for a 5 minute break. 

The meeting resumed @ 11:44am 

7.2 Presentation: MyNetball Update 

Darren Simpson, Executive General Manager Community & Pathways, presented an update on the MyNetball 
replacement system. 

The new system will be introduced in 2022. 

Jennie Webster OAM, Liverpool, asked about website integration with NNSW, Associations and Clubs.  
Associations will be able to create their own website that is embedded in the PlayHQ system. 

Doug McColl, Hills, asked about integration of other systems.  NNSW will have input into what systems are 
integrated into PlayHQ. 

Joy Gillett OAM, Penrith. asked how flexible is the system for extracting reports and information.  We will be 
advocating for this flexibility. 

Sutherland asked if Association’s own websites will be able to be integrated into the system.  We are hoping 
this will be possible. 

Inner West asked about 2021 provision of service from Interact.  NA is working with Interact and holding 
them to account. 

Wendy Archer AM (LM) commented that NA is holding Interact to account. 

NOTED as presented. 

ACTION:  No action required 

 

Northern Suburbs (2 members & 2 observers) left the meeting @ 12:15pm 

7.3 Presentation: Constitution Changes 

Carol Murphy presented the proposed Constitution changes.  The Governance Committee has been working 
on the proposed changes for a number of years, including legal advice throughout. 

It is important to align with current Governance principles. 

Lynn Quinn OAM: commented that members do not have a say in the appointment of Appointed Directors, 
and should be able to vote for the election of the President.  CMu explained that it is important to be aligned 
with current Governance principles which NNSW’s Constitution is currently not. CMu further explained that 
this proposed new “two tiered” approach means that the future President will need to be firstly elected as 
an Elected Director by the membership and then also supported as the best candidate by their fellow Board 
Directors which was a significant improvement to existing practice.  The President, and immediate past 
President Wendy Archer AM (LM) (via Zoom), noted their strong support of the proposed change to the 

15 of 28



   

Minutes of the General Meeting of the Council: 20 September 2020 2020 12 

Constitution.  The members have their say in who is elected to the Board, and it is only one of those Elected 
Directors would be then elected as President by the Board.   

As for Appointed Directors, the Board identifies skillsets within the Board, and Appointed Directors fill skills 
gaps and rotate from time to time as determined is needed by the Board. There are 2 Appointed Directors 
and 7 Elected Directors. 

Carol Baiton, Fairfield asked what is the rationale behind allowing non-members to be nominated as a Board 
member.  In the past there have been some nominees who were not previously Members who have had to 
register with an Association prior to being nominated and it was intended to alleviate the administrative 
tasks until they were indeed elected, in which case registration would occur before they formally joined the 
Board. 

Manly: Agrees with the comments made by the President and CMu. There should be community 
representation on the Board.  Associations need to see the Strategic Plan in order to vote for Directors who 
can deliver on the strategic vision. The Association would like more detailed information on nominees and in 
particular what skills the nominee has to deliver the strategic priorities. The President noted that the Director 
nomination form had been updated by the Governance Committee recently to expand on certain information 
by Board nominees but agreed with CMu that the nominations process is also under review. 

Hills: asked why do we allow non-members to be nominated?  CMu replied that NNSW continues to 
encourage members and Associations to nominate any member who has the skillset to ensure a proper 
balance of netball and other skills and experience sits at the Board level.  

Lynn Quinn OAM (LM): acknowledged that having non-Director members on sub-committees could result in 
those sub-committee members then nominating to be a Director. 

Kathy Rembisz, Shoalhaven commented that it is very important to have people on the Board who know how 
Associations work and what they need. 

NOTED as presented. 

ACTION:  No action required 

7.4 Life Member Plaque Presentation 

It has been determined to present a plaque to each of our Life Members and Netball NSW will make these 
presentations at appropriate events. 

Lynn Quinn OAM (LM) was awarded Life Membership in 2000.  The President presented a plaque to Lynn and 
acknowledged her service & commitment to Netball. 

 
 
The meeting concluded @ 1:06pm. 
 
 
Participants were invited to remain online for a Thinktank Workshop on the Road to Recovery for 2021. 

 

16 of 28



   

NNSW Council Meeting Papers 07 November 2020 17  

3. Correspondence 

3.1 Correspondence received  

There are no items of correspondence to be tabled for this meeting. 

3.2 Business Arising from Correspondence 

Nil. 

 

4. Applications for Membership 

Nil. 

 

5. Notices of Motion 

There are no notices of motion to put forward to Council. 

 

6. Reports 

6.1 Board of Directors Report 

6.1.1 March 2021 Meeting 

Please be advised that the first Council Meeting of 2021 is proposed to be held on Saturday 20 March 2021, 
at Netball Central, 2 Olympic Boulevard, Sydney Olympic Park.  However, due to the changing COVID-19 
restrictions further changes to venue or meeting structure may be considered. 

6.1.2 Board Appointments 2020 

The Board made the following Committee appointments since the September 2020 Council meeting: 

Committee Chair Members 

Audit & Risk Committee Andrew McMaster, as 
independent Chair 

Katie Simmonds 

Carol Murphy 

Michelle Champ (independent member) 

Matt Miller (September 2020) 

6.1.3 Policies Updated 

The following policies have been updated since the September 2020 Council meeting. Any amendments to 
policies are notified by memo and emailed to Association Secretaries and full mailing list. 

• Netball NSW Performance & Pathways Policy, updated 15 September 2020; 

• Netball NSW GIANTS Netball Academy & QBE Swifts Academy Selection Policy for 2021 Program, 
updated 15 September 2020; 

• Netball NSW Affiliation & Membership Policy, updated 15 September 2020; 

17 of 28



   

NNSW Council Meeting Papers 07 November 2020 18  

By referencing policies through the Netball NSW website you will always access the most recent version. 
https://nsw.netball.com.au/policies.  

6.1.4 2021 State Titles Venues  

Dates and venues for the Netball NSW 2021 season Senior State Titles, Junior State Titles, Masters State Titles 
& Social Masters were announced at the September 2020 Council meeting. 

HART Senior State Titles 

 

Saturday, 12 June to 
Monday 14 June 2021 

 

Division 1 & 2: Liverpool City Netball 
Association 

Division 3 & 4: Bankstown City Netball 
Association 

HART Junior State Titles 

 

Saturday, 26 June to 
Monday 28 June 2021 

 

Division 1 & 2: Penrith District Netball 
Association 

Division 3 & 4: Baulkham Hills Shire 
Netball Association 

BING LEE Masters State Titles 
and Netball NSW Social 
Masters 

Saturday 16 October to 
Sunday 17 October 2021 

All Divisions: Wagga Wagga Netball 
Association 

6.1.5 Vales 

Nil. 

6.2 Finance Report  

6.2.1 Finance Report (for the Period Ending 30 September 2020) 

The finance report for the period ending 30 September 2020 is attached, pages 19 to 23. 

6.2.2 Draft 2021 Budget 

An update of the draft 2021 budget will be presented at the meeting. 

 

18 of 28

https://nsw.netball.com.au/policies


 

Netball NSW Financial Update 1 

Netball NSW Financial Update 
15 October 2020 

Overview 

Netball NSW (NNSW) provides this Financial Update to Affiliated Associations prior to the Council 
Meeting (General Meeting) scheduled for Saturday 7 November 2020 at Netball Central, 2 Olympic 
Boulevard, Sydney Olympic Park.  

This update comprises an overview of both the September 2020 Financial Report; the Hardship Scheme 
and Potential Community Initiatives; and an update on the 2021 Budget. A financial presentation and 
further information will be provided at the Council Meeting including NNSW’s ongoing response to the 
COVID-19 disruption. 

30 September 2020 – Financial Report 

The Financial Report as at 30 September 2020, as flagged at the last Council meeting, indicates that 
NNSW is expecting a significantly stronger 2020 financial result compared to the estimates in the 2020 
Revised Budget and the July 2020 Full Year Forecast.  

The Full Year Forecast per the September 2020 report is for a profit/surplus of circa $1.3M at EBITDA 
level (inclusive of extraordinary items) compared to the full year forecast of $394k tabled in the July 
2020 Financial Report. The September Full Year Forecast has been endorsed by the Board and Audit 
and Risk Committee as being prudent and based on reasonably conservative assumptions. The overall 
financial position of NNSW in terms of cash and working capital for 2020 is very sound, but remains 
subject to any impact of a significant deterioration in the COVID-19 situation.  The Financial Report as 
at 30 September is attached. 

Briefly, the major items of note in the improved forecast are as follows: 

- Capitation Revenue - $264K improvement to forecast with summer registrations of 3,156 
already exceeding revised budgeted levels. 30 September 2020 total registration level was 
95,829. 

- Financial Hardship Scheme / Association Initiatives – a provision of $0.5M has been retained 
in the forecast. See below section.  

- JobKeeper Subsidy – Netball NSW has maintained eligibility for this Scheme until the 3 January 
2021 ($321K improvement to forecast).  

- Sponsorship Revenue – $65K increase in forecast with some risk provisions still retained. 
- Senior and Juniors State Titles and State/Social Masters – cancellation of these events 

resulted in a $124K P&L improvement. 
- SSN Match Day Expenses – a downward reforecast of $267K across both GIANTS Netball and 

NSW Swifts.  
- Staff and Player Wages – a $127K forecast increase in aggregate for staff and player wages 

including revised SSN Player Collective Agreement changes.  
- ATO Cash-Flow Boost - $100K improvement to the P&L for this extraordinary item.  

See below summary table of the Full Year Forecast as at 30 September compared to the Financial 
Report as at 31 July 2020, the 2020 Revised Budget, and the 2020 Original Budget.   

 

19 of 28



 

Netball NSW Financial Update 2 

Financial Summary 

 30 September 
2020 Full Year 

Forecast 

31 July 2020 
Full Year 
Forecast 

2020 Revised 
Budget 

2020 
Original 
Budget 

Total Revenue (before 
Extraordinary Items) 

$11.1M $10.9M $10.8M $18.2M 

Staff Costs (net of JobKeeper 
subsidy) 

$4.5M $4.7M $4.9M $8.1M 

Total Expenditure $12.5M $12.8M $12.8M $18.1M 

Net Profit (loss) before 
extraordinary items 

($1.4M) ($1.9M) ($2.0M) $0.1M 

Total of Extraordinary items $2.7M $2.3M $1.9M $0.3M 

Net Profit (loss) after 
Extraordinary items 

$1.3M $0.4M ($78K) loss $436K 
profit 

Estimate Year End Cash Balance $2.4M $2.8M * $1.6M $1.6M 

*includes $658K repayable to the Office of Sport for the Grassroots Sport Fund 

2021 NNSW Budget  

The Board considered an initial proposed 2021 Budget at the 13 October Board meeting, and the Board 
have asked management to rework a few areas of the budget. It is expected the 2021 budget will be 
finalised at or prior to the 1 December 2020 Board meeting.   

An update on the 2021 budget will be provided at the November Council meeting.  

Financial Hardship Scheme and Potential Community Initiatives 

NNSW will provide an update on the Financial Hardship Scheme at the November Council meeting. 
Very few Associations and Clubs have contacted NNSW about the Scheme which would seem to 
indicate that most Associations and Clubs have managed the financial disruption and challenge of 
COVID-19 in 2020. Survey responses from Associations and the discussion at the ThinkTank Workshop 
on 20 September also seem to support this position. Should any Association wish to further discuss 
the Scheme please contact Lauren Woods or Melissa Achten via email at community@netballnsw.com 
or phone on 9951-5000.    

A presentation and discussion on potential Community Initiatives will be conducted at the November 
Council Meeting.  This follows on from the ThinkTank Workshop and the survey feedback prior to this 
on initiatives that Associations suggested NNSW could support to help Associations.  

Financial Presentation and Questions 

As noted above a financial presentation and further information will be provided at the Council 
Meeting on 7 November 2020.  

20 of 28

mailto:community@netballnsw.com


 

Netball NSW Financial Update 3 

The presentations will be made available following the meeting and there will be an opportunity to 
submit questions on the financial report and presentations in writing by close of business Wednesday 
11 November. Separate correspondence will follow regarding this process.   

 

  

Louise Sullivan Carolyn Campbell 

President CEO 

21 of 28



The NSW Netball Association Limited Variance

Consolidated Trading Statement (Profit & Loss) Actual 2020 Full Year
2020 Full Year

Current Forecast Approved Approved

By Department Sep 2020 Forecast as at Forecast as at 

for the period ending 30/9/2020 Year to Date Sep-20 July-20

1. Community and Pathways 

Gross Capitation & Affiliation Revenue (including NetSetGo Revenue) - After Refund 6,080,917              6,362,669              6,099,042              263,627                6,113,373              7,562,994              

Hardship/Initiatives -                        (500,000)               (500,000)               -                        (1,489,741)            -                        

School & Community Revenue 142,325                150,149                179,310                (29,161)                 179,310                365,684                

Grants Revenue 102,295                155,982                155,982                -                        155,982                155,982                

Competitions Revenue 206,576                271,966                388,716                (116,750)               388,716                847,806                

Pathways Revenue 23,328                  46,250                  46,250                  -                        46,250                  116,640                

Umpiring and Coaching Revenue 70,027                  111,842                111,842                -                        111,842                135,197                

Other Revenue (including State Dinner & Conferences) 72,402                  72,402                  71,268                  1,134                    71,268                  126,000                

Sub-total Community and Pathways Revenue 6,697,870              6,671,260              6,552,410              118,850                5,577,000              9,310,303              

Netball Australia Contribution Expense -                        -                        -                        -                        (706,343)               

NetSetGO Expenses (436,345)               (441,067)               (422,455)               (18,612)                 (393,574)               (517,798)               

Community Personal Accident Insurance Policy (467,813)               (623,751)               (623,751)               (0)                          (623,751)               -                        

School & Community Grants Expenses (96,436)                 (220,939)               (238,811)               17,872                  (216,311)               (348,985)               

Association Development Expenses (85,614)                 (151,105)               (151,105)               -                        (151,105)               (246,605)               

Regional Expenses (344,536)               (510,253)               (474,704)               (35,549)                 (501,898)               (656,448)               

Competitions Expenses (62,649)                 (175,335)               (416,535)               241,200                (416,535)               (757,456)               

Pathways Expenses (121,287)               (216,616)               (216,616)               -                        (216,616)               (347,000)               

Umpiring and Coaching Expenses (31,695)                 (63,449)                 (63,449)                 -                        (63,449)                 (122,168)               

Wages Plus Other Costs (including State Dinner & Conferences) (1,078,250)            (1,630,157)            (1,564,423)            (65,734)                 (1,535,794)            (2,179,786)            

Sub-total Community and Pathways Expenses (2,724,624)            (4,032,671)            (4,171,849)            139,178                (4,119,032)            (5,882,589)            

Community and Pathways Profit / (Loss) 3,973,245              2,638,588              2,380,561              258,027                1,457,968              3,427,714              

2. NSW Swifts - SSN Operations

Sponsorship & Merchandise Revenue 708,409                1,007,545              967,881                39,664                  1,116,715              1,676,012              

Membership & Ticketing Revenue 156,518                197,172                197,172                -                        447,957                904,886                

SSN League Grants Revenue 422,500                422,500                422,500                -                        422,500                415,000                

VIK/Contra Revenue 65,458                  84,500                  82,000                  2,500                    82,000                  107,000                

Functions & Events Revenue (incl. SSN Pre-season) 8,808                    8,808                    8,808                    -                        8,438                    135,180                

Swifts Academy Revenue 131,250                155,000                175,000                (20,000)                 175,000                130,000                

Other Revenue 39,268                  20,000                  20,000                  -                        20,000                  -                        

Sub-total NSW Swifts - SSN Operations Revenue 1,532,212              1,895,525              1,873,361              22,164                  2,272,609              3,368,078              

Player Expenses (525,552)               (732,316)               (761,636)               29,320                  (714,788)               (789,380)               

Management, Coaches and Support Staff Related Expenses (880,111)               (1,361,847)            (1,365,422)            3,574                    (1,350,285)            (1,613,005)            

Game Day, Membership & Marketing Expenses (223,353)               (293,571)               (434,686)               141,114                (524,393)               (775,668)               

Team Expenses (274,080)               (376,106)               (355,759)               (20,347)                 (299,677)               (348,639)               

SSN League Entry Fee (80,000)                 (80,000)                 (80,000)                 -                        (80,000)                 (80,000)                 

Sponsorship Expenses (31,111)                 (78,973)                 (78,973)                 -                        (150,185)               (182,885)               

SSN Functions & Events Expenses (incl. SSN Pre-season) (35,785)                 (35,331)                 (35,331)                 -                        (35,331)                 (181,560)               

Swifts Academy Expenses (67,576)                 (128,658)               (128,658)               -                        (122,158)               (215,360)               

Sub-total NSW Swifts - SSN Operations Expenses (2,117,569)            (3,086,803)            (3,240,465)            153,661                (3,276,817)            (4,186,497)            

NSW Swifts - SSN Operations Profit / (Loss) (585,357)               (1,191,278)            (1,367,104)            175,825                (1,004,207)            (818,419)               

3. GIANTS Netball - SSN Operations

Sponsorship & Merchandise Revenue 669,648                867,535                892,871                (25,336)                 1,014,704              1,510,336              

Membership & Ticketing Revenue 143,592                91,658                  91,658                  -                        315,963                880,981                

SSN League Grants Revenue 422,500                422,500                422,500                -                        422,500                415,000                

VIK/Contra Revenue 149,083                181,000                178,500                2,500                    178,500                319,000                

Functions & Events Revenue (incl. SSN Pre-season) -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        133,660                

Giants Academy Revenue 56,250                  75,000                  75,000                  -                        75,000                  45,000                  

Other Revenue -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Sub-total GIANTS Netball - SSN Operations Revenue 1,441,073              1,637,693              1,660,529              (22,836)                 2,006,667              3,303,977              

Player Expenses (479,200)               (721,075)               (707,868)               (13,207)                 (655,316)               (742,880)               

Management, Coaches and Support Staff Related Expenses (781,336)               (1,153,735)            (1,172,459)            18,724                  (1,172,380)            (1,472,993)            

Game Day, Membership & Marketing Expenses (180,644)               (239,942)               (365,632)               125,690                (477,569)               (760,517)               

Team Expenses (307,149)               (419,352)               (451,851)               32,500                  (376,802)               (507,951)               

SSN League Entry Fee (80,000)                 (80,000)                 (80,000)                 -                        (80,000)                 (80,000)                 

Sponsorship Expenses (34,158)                 (73,864)                 (73,864)                 -                        (135,377)               (161,985)               

SSN Functions & Events Expenses (incl. SSN Pre-season) (47,076)                 (66,277)                 (66,277)                 -                        (50,278)                 (189,500)               

Giants Academy Expenses (52,992)                 (107,922)               (107,922)               -                        (107,922)               (202,858)               

Sub-total GIANTS Netball -SSN Operations Expenses (1,962,556)            (2,862,167)            (3,025,874)            163,707                (3,055,645)            (4,118,684)            

GIANTS Netball - SSN Operations Profit / (Loss) (521,483)               (1,224,474)            (1,365,346)            140,871                (1,048,978)            (814,707)               

4. NNSW Business Operations (non-SSN) & Netball Central

 Commercial & Sponsorship Revenues (incl. VIK) 256,026                418,270                352,048                66,222                  450,381                908,967                

Distributions from NNSW Foundation -                        -                        20,000                  (20,000)                 20,000                  100,000                

Netball Central Revenue 356,921                476,510                476,510                -                        476,510                1,266,124              

Other Revenue (Excl. Interest Revenue) 960                       960                       960                       (0)                          960                       2,000                    

Sub-total NNSW Business Operations (non-SSN) & Netball Central Revenue 613,907                895,740                849,519                46,222                  947,852                2,277,091              

Commercial, Sponsorship and Staffing Expenses (122,145)               (222,095)               (207,715)               (14,380)                 (185,189)               (419,533)               

Marketing, Events & Media Expenses (32,074)                 (85,905)                 (85,294)                 (611)                      (102,023)               (183,080)               

Netball Central Expenses (486,537)               (740,929)               (731,929)               (9,000)                   (727,325)               (993,502)               

Administration Expenses (Excl. Interest and Depreciation Expenses) (933,533)               (1,462,466)            (1,363,858)            (98,608)                 (1,323,075)            (2,348,679)            

Sub-total NNSW Business Operations (non-SSN) & Netball Central Expenses (1,574,288)            (2,511,395)            (2,388,795)            (122,600)               (2,337,612)            (3,944,793)            

NNSW Business Operations (non-SSN) & Netball Central Profit / (Loss) (960,381)               (1,615,655)            (1,539,277)            (76,378)                 (1,389,760)            (1,667,702)            

Consolidated Netball NSW

 *EBITDA Level

Revenues 10,285,062            11,100,218            10,935,818            164,399                10,804,129            18,259,449            

Expenses (8,379,037)            (12,493,036)          (12,826,983)          333,947                (12,789,107)          (18,132,563)          

Profit / (Loss) * EBITDA before Extraordinary Items 1,906,025        (1,392,819)       (1,891,165)       498,346           (1,984,978)       126,885           

 Extraordinary Item - Jobkeeper Subsidy 1,378,500              2,332,050              2,010,600              321,450                1,632,000              -                        

 Extraordinary Item - State Government Recovery Funding 275,096                275,096                275,096                -                        275,000                -                        

 Extraordinary Item - ATO Cashflow Boost 87,500                  100,000                100,000                -                        -                        

Extraordinary Item - KRA Development Revenue (non-cash) -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        309,550                

Sub-total Extraordinary Items 1,741,096              2,707,146              2,285,696              421,450                1,907,000              309,550                

Profit / (Loss) * EBITDA after Extraordinary Items 3,647,121        1,314,327        394,531           919,796           (77,978)            436,435           

Interest & Other Revenue & Expenses (Net) (7,383)                   (41,772)                 (41,772)                 -                        (41,772)                 (31,734)                 

Profit / (Loss) after Other Revenue & Expenses 3,639,737          1,272,555          352,759             919,796             (119,750)            404,701             

Depreciation Expenses (non-cash) (1,427,624)            (1,942,716)            (1,942,716)            -                        (1,942,716)            (1,918,051)            

Grand Total Profit / (Loss) 2,212,113        (670,161)          (1,589,957)       919,796           (2,062,466)       (1,513,350)       

Consolidated Staff Wage Costs (3,514,738) (5,143,718) (5,000,905) (142,814)               (4,887,930) (5,959,111)            

Consolidated Players Wage Costs (1,004,752) (1,453,391) (1,469,504) 16,113 (1,370,104) (1,532,260)            

Sub-Total Wage Costs (4,519,491) (6,597,109) (6,470,409) (126,701) (6,258,033) (7,491,371)

Consolidated SSN Operation Related Contractors Costs (128,047) (252,136) (267,136) 15,000 (263,582) (615,183)               

Total Gross Wage Costs Including Contractors (4,647,537) (6,849,245) (6,737,545) (111,701) (6,521,615) (8,106,553)

Jobkeeper Payment Offset 1,378,500 2,332,050 2,010,600 321,450 1,632,000 -                        

Total Net Wage Costs after Jobkeeper Subsidy (3,269,037) (4,517,195) (4,726,945) 209,749 (4,889,615) (8,106,553)

* Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation & Amortisation (EBITDA)

vs Prior Month

Forecast

Revised Budget

2020

Original Budget

2020

22 of 28



ASSETS

Sep 30, 

2020

July 31, 

2020 $ Change

Current Assets

Cash Assets 6,274,176 4,513,107 1,761,069

Accounts Receivable 1,300,184 3,478,714 (2,178,530)

Other Current Assets 389,535 408,283 (18,748)

Prepayments (10,484) 161,065 (171,549)

7,953,411 8,561,168 (607,757)

Non-Current Assets

Fixed assets (at WDV) 27,567,499 27,876,702 (309,202)

Right of Use Asset 765,886 765,886 0

Netball Central Sinking Fund 225,000 225,000 0

Total assets 36,511,796 37,428,755 (916,960)

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable (including GST payments plan) 1,161,376 1,507,282 (345,906)

Other Creditors 477,101 108,226 368,875

Income in advance 1,263,549 329,833 933,716

State Government Funding 657,787 658,787 (1,000)

Bank Loans (cars, gym & café fitout) 160,344 160,344 0

Lease Liability 62,534 62,534 0

GST payable/(receivable) 29,459 (15,736) 45,194

PAYG/FBT/Payroll Tax Payable 1,020 138,151 (137,131)

Superannuation contributions payable 149,123 40,566 108,556

Provision for employee entitlements 347,294 275,835 71,459

4,309,587 3,265,823 1,043,764

Non-Current Liabilities

Loans and Borrowings 259,387 279,919 (20,532)

Lease Liability 664,551 677,451 (12,900)

Provision for employee entitlements 147,461 137,782 9,679

Security Deposit Bond 22,208 22,208 0

1,093,607 1,117,360 (23,753)

Total liabilities 5,403,194 4,383,183 1,020,012

NET ASSETS 31,108,601 33,045,573 (1,936,971)

EQUITY

Retained earnings 28,896,488 28,896,488 0

Current year profit/(loss) 2,212,113 4,149,085 (1,936,971)

TOTAL EQUITY 31,108,601 33,045,573 (1,936,971)

THE NEW SOUTH WALES NETBALL ASSOCIATION LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET

As at 30 Sep 2020

23 of 28



   

NNSW Council Meeting Papers 07 November 2020 24  

6.2.3 Proposed 2021 Netball NSW Affiliation Fees 

There is no increase proposed for 2021 affiliation fees. 

2021 Netball NSW Affiliation Fee 2020 fee 
(excl GST) 

% 
increase 

Increase 
amount 

2021 fee 
(excl GST) 

2021 fee 
(Incl GST) 

Membership up to 500 individuals  $94.05 0.0% $0.00 $94.05 $103.46 

Membership 501-1000 individuals $188.10 0.0% $0.00 $188.10 $206.91 

Membership 1001-2000 individuals $250.80 0.0% $0.00 $250.80 $275.88 

Membership 2001 individuals and 
over 

$376.20 0.0% $0.00 $376.20 $413.82 

6.2.4 Proposed 2021 Netball NSW Full Season Membership Fees 

There is no increase proposed for 2021 for all membership categories.   

Covers a member from 1 January – 31 December 2021 

Membership Category 2020 fee 
(excl GST) 

% 
increase 

Increase 
amount 

2021 fee 
(excl GST) 

2021 fee 
(incl GST) 

Senior $81.95 0.0% $0.00 $81.95 $90.14 

Junior $62.25 0.0% $0.00 $62.25 $68.48 

NetSetGo $60.17 0.0% $0.00 $60.17 $66.19 

Non-Player $42.53 0.0% $0.00 $42.53 $46.78 

All Abilities $28.02 0.0% $0.00 $28.02 $30.82 

Please note: 

• Participants turning 10 in 2021 who are playing in junior competitions will be required to register as a 
Junior member.  

• Participants turning 10 in 2021 who are participating in NetSetGo “GO” tier program will be required to 
register as a NetSetGo member. 

6.2.5 Proposed 2021 Netball NSW Summer Membership Fees 

There is no increase proposed for 2021 Summer membership fees. 

These membership fees will continue to sit alongside the normal membership categories of Senior and Junior. 
This fee structure will continue to be made available by Netball NSW to enable Associations to deliver a 
choice of netball tailored to their community’s changing needs and at a reasonable price point aiming to 
engage new participants and retain them as a long term member from 2021 and beyond.  

• This membership option is targeted at Associations that hold a social/twilight competition under 
traditional rules allowing for both mixed, male only and female only competitions.  

• This fee option is available to all Affiliated Associations 

24 of 28



   

NNSW Council Meeting Papers 07 November 2020 25  

• This fee is applicable for individual registrations for members who have not registered in the 2021 
season. 

• This fee option covers a player from 1st September – 31 December 2021, based on a 30% discount on 
the proposed 2021 Membership Fee 

2021 Summer 
Membership 
Fees 

2020 fee 
(excl GST) 

% 
increase 

Increase 
amount 

2021 full 
fee (excl 

GST) 

Jan-Dec 

30% 
discount 

on full 
fee 

2021 
summer 
fee (excl 

GST)  

Sept-Dec 

2021 
summer 
fee (incl 

GST)  

Sept-Dec 

Senior $81.95 0.0% $0.00 $81.95 -$24.58 $57.36 $63.10 

Junior $62.25 0.0% $0.00 $62.25 -$18.68 $43.58 $47.93 

Definition 

• Senior: have reached or will reach the age of 18 by 31 December in the year of play. 

• Junior: have reached or will reach the age of between 10 and 17 years by 31 December in the year of 
play. 

Please note: 

• Played Winter Season at a different Association/Club: Players who HAVE been previously registered in 
the 2021 Winter Season and playing at a different Club are not liable to pay the Netball NSW Registration 
Fee. In this case, players will need to renew their membership with the new Association/Club.  

• Played Winter Season at the same Association/Club: Players already correctly registered for the 2021 
Winter Season with their Association/Club are not required to do anything. 

• NetSetGo, All Abilities and Non-Player Membership Categories and costs remain unchanged during this 
period. 

• Fast5 is a Netball Australia Product and the costs remain unchanged during this period.  

• Walking Netball is a Netball NSW product and it’s costs will remain unchanged during this period. 

6.2.6 Proposed Competition Fees 2021 

There is no increase proposed for 2021 Competition fees. 

Competition Per 2020 fee 
(excl GST) 

% 
Increase 

Increase 
amount 

2021 fee 
(excl GST) 

2021 fee 
(incl GST) 

Senior State Titles (replaces 
State Championships) 

Team $305.02 0.0% $0.00 $305.02 $335.53 

Junior State Titles (replaces 
State Age Championships) 

Team $305.02 0.0% $0.00 $305.02 $335.53 

State Masters Team $305.02 0.0% $0.00 $305.02 $335.53 

Regional League  Team $177.74 0.0% $0.00 $177.74 $195.51 

Summer Series (replaces 
NID) 

Player $83.25 0.0% $0.00 $83.25 $91.58 

25 of 28



   

NNSW Council Meeting Papers 07 November 2020 26  

Competition Per 2020 fee 
(excl GST) 

% 
Increase 

Increase 
amount 

2021 fee 
(excl GST) 

2021 fee 
(incl GST) 

Metro League Player $111.23 0.0% $0.00 $111.23 $122.35 

Regional State Cup Player $88.30 0.0% $0.00 $88.30 $97.13 

Social Masters (excludes 
social function, which will be 
ticketed separately) 

Player $80.61 0.0% $0.00 $80.61 $88.67 

Michael Anderson 
Executive General Manager, Finance & Strategy 

6.3 CEO’s Operational Report 

Netball 2027 World Cup Bid 

• On Tuesday 6th October we presented to the INF NWC Bid Evaluation Committee via Zoom. 

• The Bid evaluation Committee now considers the Bid and we hope to hear to result later in the year. 

NSW Swifts 

• The NSW Swifts finished the season in 4th place after a 5 goal loss to the West Coast Fever in the semi-
final.  Obviously the team are very disappointed with the result and will take time to review and evaluate. 

• The four athletes selected in the Diamonds squad, Paige Hadley, Sarah Klau, Maddy Proud and Sophie 
Garbin will participate in a Diamonds Camp in Qld the week post the SSN grand final. 

GIANTS Netball  

• The season concluded for the GIANTS at the end of Round 14. 

• GIANTS were delighted to have three players selected in the Origin Diamonds squad – Kiera Austin, 
Caitlin Bassett and Jamie-Lee Price – for a training camp at the end of October. 

• Additionally 13 GIANTS Academy athletes have been selected in the national 17/U, 19/U and 21/U 
squads with camps to be held in Nov/Dec 

Competitions 

• 2020 Origin Energy Premier League 

Premier League held the Indigenous Round for the second year on Wednesday, 7 October 2020.  The 
feedback from this round has been extremely positive and this year also involved our Umpires. 

Premier League Grand Finals will be held on the following nights: 

➢ U23s Grand Final (and  3rd place play-off match) – Tuesday, 27 October 2020 

➢ Opens Grand Final (and 3rd place play-off match) – Wednesday, 28 October 2020 

• 2020 Dooleys Metro League 

The Dooleys Metro League Competition has come to end for the 2020 season. Final results are: 

➢ Division 1 

26 of 28



   

NNSW Council Meeting Papers 07 November 2020 27  

Winners: Northern Suburbs 

Runners Up: Manly Warringah 

➢ Division 2 

Winners: Campbelltown District 

Runners Up: Penrith District 

➢ Division 3 

Winners: Hawkesbury City 

Runners Up: Liverpool City 

➢ Division 4 

Winners:  Northern Suburbs 

Runners Up: Eastwood Ryde 

➢ Division 5 

Winners: Sutherland Shire 

Runners Up: Inner Western Suburbs 

➢ Division 6 

Winners: Manly Warringah  

Runners Up: Northern Suburbs 

• Summer Series 

There were a total of 52 entries received for the 2020 Summer Series Competition. The final format for 
the Summer Series, 7 round competition will be: 

➢ 4 x Opens Divisions, 7 teams p/division 

➢ 3 x Development Divisions, 8 teams p/division 

• National Championships 

Netball Australia has announced that the 2021 National Netball Championships will be held in Hobart 
from July 4 – July 11. 

• Final selections 

The Netball NSW 17U & 19U State Teams (12 athletes in each) will be announced in March 2021. 

New initiative in 2021 will see a Regional Emerging Team and Metro Emerging Team named. Twelve 
athletes will be selected in each team, their campaign will align with the State Team campaign and will 
culminate with match play at the Australian Institute of Sport.  

• Coach and performance teams 

As the 2020 coach and performance teams did not have the opportunity to apply their skills in a full 
campaign, all 2020 appointed staff have been invited to continue their roles in 2021. 

 

 

 

27 of 28



   

NNSW Council Meeting Papers 07 November 2020 28  

Community 

• Despite the challenges COVID-19 has presented throughout 2020, our Sporting Schools program and 
School Clinics have continued in Term 3.  Walking Netball has also re-commenced, at Orange NA, 
Parramatta Auburn NA, Penrith District NA, Hills District NA and Manly Warringah NA 

I would like to thank the staff here at Netball and the Board for their ongoing support during these difficult 
times. 

I wish everyone well for the summer season.  

Carolyn Campbell 
Chief Executive Officer  

Staffing Matters 

Resignations  Louise 
Stephenson 

Participation Administrator 30 September 2020 

 Brooke Brown Regional Development Manager, West 
Central West 

02 October 2020 

Appointments Nil   

Internal 
Appointments 

Nil   

6.4 Appeals Tribunal Report – 2020 Competitions 

No appeals were received for the 2020 Summer Series Competition. 

Claire Dale 
Competitions Manager 

 

7. General Business 

7.1 Presentation: The Road to Recovery Initiatives 

For presentation at the meeting. 

7.2 Netball NSW Revised Strategic Plan and Priorities 2020-2022 

For presentation at the meeting. 

 

28 of 28




